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CERTIPICATION
1, Brenda N. Anderson, Deputy City Clerk of the City
of Raleigh, North Carolina, do hereby certify that the attached
1s a true and exact copy of Ordinance No. (1984) 395 adopted
by the City Council at their meeting held on August T, 1984.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and
have caused the Seal of the City of Raleigh to be affixed

thi‘s‘;;.ﬂhjsq day of August, 1983.
L ta,

HALE
/ )

Deputy City Clerk
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ORDINANCE BO. (1984) 395

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING THE PROPERTY OF THE PROFESSIONAL BUILDING
LOCATED AT 127 WEST BARGETY STREET IN THE CITY OF RALEIGH, MORTR
CAROLIMA, A RISTORIC PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the General Assesbly of the State of North Carxolima
authorized the crsation of a Historic Properties Commission for the
City of Raleigh and otherwise provided for the preservation of
certain historic sites and buildings by the passage of Part 38,
Article 19, Chapter 16OA North Carolina Ganeral Statytes; and

WHEREAS, the Raleigh Ristoric Properties Commission has made
an investigation and recommended the following property be des~
ighated a Historic Propertys and

WHEREAS, the Morth Carolina State Department for Cultural
Resoyrces has made an analysis and recommendation that the follow-
ing property be designated a bistoric property; and

WHEREAS, on the 7 day of ,g. bu. a joint public hearing was
held in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building, Raleigh,
North Carolina, by the Historic Properties Commission and the City
Council of the City of Ralaigh to determine whethar the hersinafter
described property should be dasignated a historic property; and

WHEREAS, all requiremsants of Part 3B, Article 19, Chapter IGO-A
of the North Carolina General Statutes, precedinqg the adoption of
this ordinance, have been complied with.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
RALEIGH THAT:

Section 1. The property of The Professional Building located
at 127 West Hargett Street, in the planning jurisdictior in the
City of Raleigh, North Carolina, be and is hereby declared a
historic property. Said property being wore particularly described
as follows:

BEGINNING at the point of intersection of the southern techni-
cal property line of West Hargett Street with the eastern
technical property line of South McDowell Street; thence with
the southern technical property line of West Bargett Street
South 83 degrees 15 minutes East 95 feet to the point of
intersection of said technical property line with the western
edge of a 10 foot alley; thence with the western edge of said
10 foot alley South (6 degrees 45 minutes West 130 feet to a
point in the northern property line of the property of the
News and Observer Publishing Company; thence with the northern
property line of the News and Cbserver Publishing Company
North 83 degrees 15 minutes West 925 feet to a point in the
eastern technical property line of South McDowell Street;
thence with the eastern technical property line of Scuth
McDowell Street North 06 degrees 45 minutes East 130 feet to
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the POINT OF BEGINNING, said land being shown on a plat of
survey entitled "Property of Golden lLand Realty, Irc., South-
east cormer of WNest Hargett Street and McDowell Street,
Raleigh, Noxth Carolina®™ dated September 2, 1980, prepared by
Bennie R. Smith, R.L.S. Also being Lots 1, 2, 3, 4. S and 6
and the 10 foot east-west alley (now closed) as shown ob & map
of the Holden Homestead recorded in Book of Maps 1315, Page 16
of the Wake Ccunty Registry.

Section 2. Those elements of the property that are integral
to its historical, architectural, archaeological, or any com-
bination thereof are as follows:

Located at the corper of McDowell and West Hargett Streets,
The Professional Building has a unique and important relation-
ship to Nash Square, historically one of the major features of
the original plan of Raleigh's downtown area. It is an
8-story Chicago-style office building, typical of the 1920s
with its large rectangular massing and Beaux Arts terracotta
ornamentation in MNeo-classical themes. In this example, the
architect made use of the traditional approach to classical
column arrangements of “"base," ®"shaft® and “capital® in the
organization of the facade el . approach Kk use
of four vertical stages, with the base element divided into
two different stages. There are five stores on the ground
floor, in addition to the symmetrical entrance off West
Hargett Street, and seven floors of offices above.

The building is a steel frame commercial structure using
fire-proof construction techniques, with a veneer of yellow
vertical striated brick. The yellow background color serves
to offset the white color of the terracotta decorative ele-
ments. Its locatiorn on the corner creates a strong and
imposing relationship with Nash Square across the street. The
inner block facades (north and east elevations) are undecorat-

ed and anticipated party walls or future development to
obscure them.

Section 3. BNo building or structure that is designated in.
this ordinance located on the hereinbefore described site may be
altered, restored, moved, remodeled, or reconstructed so that a
change in design, material ‘or outer appearance occurs unless and
until a certificate of appropriateness is obtained from the Ralaigh
Historic Properties Commission or its successors.

Section 4. No building or structure which is designated in
this ordinance on the hereinbefore described site may be demolishad
unless and until either approval of demolition is obtained from the
Raleigh Bistoric Properties Commission or, after the Commission has
received a completed request for demolition, one-hundred and eighty
{180) days {or amy other longer period of time required by ¥.C.G.S.
160A-399.6 as it may be amended hereinafter) have elapsed.




Section $. That all ownsrs and ts of the property
hereinabove dascribed, wvhose identity and sses can be ascer-

tained by the exsrcise of duas diligence he sent by certified mail a
copy of this ordinance.

Section 6. This ordinance shall ba indexed und
ouner's name in the grantor and grantea indaxss in uu office o!
the Register of Deeds of Wake County.

Section 7. City administration and the Ristoric Properties
Commission are hereby authorired and digscted to have esrected an
appropriate sign on the sits hereinabove deacribed setting forth
the fact that said site has been designated a historic property by
action of the Historic Proparties Commission and the City Councfl
of the City of Raleigh provided, should the owmers of the herein-
above described property oot consent to the erection of said sign
on the described premisas, City administration and the Historic
Properties Commission are bereby authorized and directed to have
said sign located on the public right-of-wvay adjacent to said
property.

Section 8. In the event any bullding or structure is de-
wolished in accordance with the ordinances of the City of Raleigh,
this ordi shall tically be null and void.

Section 9. Any violation of this ordinance shall be unlawful
as by law provided.

Adopted: 8/7/84
Effective: 8/7/84

Distribution: City Manager
City Attorney
Planning Department (2)
Inspections Department (3)
Historic Properties Commission
Wake County Tax Supervisor
Property Owner and/oxr Occupant
Register of Deeds
City Council

.




RALEIGH HISTORIC PROPERTIES

APPLICATION

1. General Information

Address of property to be designated as Raleich Historic Property

27 st Hrgelt Sreet
=l
(Gnla 27464

Name of Applicant ans address

)EZ‘:"!{’F 7 ?‘%fffﬂmfﬁ?/ %550/’/:7%6’{ Telerhone 294 -/52¢€
.j'wf:: ;{; Z /25 E?ﬂaﬁﬂiaﬁff f{ﬁﬂg% A&,
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Owner of property and address

SO 2SS é’bdl/,ﬁ Telerhone

Classification:

_—Building _ Structure —_ Site — Mhject
Ownership:

___Publie _&“Private __ Dotk

Status:

= Occupied  __jnoccupied —ork in procress
Accessible:

_~_ Yes, restricted ___ Yes, unrestricted ___No

Present use:

_p/ﬁzumrc1al __Museum __ Residential __ Other



Part

Part

Location of leaal descrintion:

_«~ Courthouse «— Reaistry of Deeds ___ Other

(Give specific address 1 Foutside Wake County)

Il1. Significance of Property

Period: __ 1400-1499 __ 1500-1599 ___ 1600-1699
___1700-1799  __ 1800-1899 = 1900 to present

Areas of Sianificance

—— Archeology Historic - Conservation —— Museum

— Agriculture = ECONOMICS = Philosophy

o~ Architecture —— Education —— Politics/Government
__Art — Engineerinc — Reliaion

_~ Commerce ___ lLaw ____ Science

____ Communications ___ Literature ____Social/Humanitarian
— Community planning — Military —— Other (Specify)

IT1. Basis for recuest of site desianation (check one)

—— Historjcal (attach additional sheets as necessar , _
Descnlbe trge property as it existed at the tlmeyz)f historical

event. How it now exist, if different, and how, if at all, it might
have been altered.

e stfached Aatunal E}f seter
fmina f‘(-"'f £



=Architectural (attach additional sheets as necessary)

Describe briefly, but fully, in a factual, straight forward
fashion. Begin with the overall form, and then describe primary
features common throughout the buildina. Then describe main facade,
then other sides, extensions, alterations, and additions. Then go
inside, describe the predominant floor plan, and introduce the over-
all character of interior, general characteristics of interior finish,
general alterations. Then as appropriate, describe features of
individual rooms or sections. [I¥you have learned the original
function of specific rooms, outbuildings, etc. note these as well as
the physical appearance.

See gttached Aatwis/ F E}’fﬁ /ey
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Part IV, Physical/Geographical description of site

Kindly provide a boundary description with sketch map showing
measurements and other landmarks as well as you can. You do not have
to get a surveyor to do this. The thing to remember is that the boundaries
should be clear, defensible and reasonable. Also, you should try to
find out how the people happened to build the place in this way and
the influences that shaped the decision and execution.

¢ = 7%{1?.& el ﬁﬁiﬁ#ﬁ;f ,:ﬁ' ,f_‘,‘e":’..'f J?’fffﬁffc??f;ﬁ;



Part V. Documentation

The following items must accompany this request:
Photographs
Citations for Deed Recording
Earliest listing in City Registry
Evidence of original construction date and original owner, e.g. ,

Deeds of Trust, family Bible, Sanborn Insurance Maps, publications,
personal mementoes.

S attached Mstiona) .z;ffr’?éf PERIING tarh

For further information and/or assistance contact:

Raleigh Historic Properties Commission, Inc.
1 Mimosa Street
Raleigh, North Carolina 27604

B32-7238
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See instructions in How to Complete National Register Forms
Type &l entries--complete applicable sections

1. Name

hirtoric The Rdess

and/or common  The Prof essional Building

2. Location

street & number  123- 127 \\est Hargett Street (Corner McDowell) ~ ——not for publication
city, town Ral ei gh — vicinity of B
state North Carolinacode 037 county \Wake County code 183
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
— district —— public — occupied — agriculture — museum
xx_ buliding(®) xx_ private — unoccupied XX commercial — _ park
—_ structure — both MM work in progress —— educational, _ _ private residence
—_ site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment —religious
— object —— inprocess XX yes: restricted — government — sclentific

- belng considered — yes: unrestricted — — industrial — transportation

NA n o] .— military — other:
- -

4. Owner of Property
name Urban Structures, Inc., M. Terry A Busby, President

street & number 1025 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite 207

city, town Vashi ngt on —__ vicinity of state Di strict of Col unbia

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Wake County Courthouse

street 6 number Fayetteville Street Mall

city, town Ral ei gh state North Carolina
o. fRe_gresentation in Existing Su rveys

tithe Raleigh |nventory has this property been determined eligible? y e s —_no

aoate  Conpl eted and published 1978 — _federal ___sbte county xx local

depository for survey records North Carolina Departnent of Archives and History

ey, town  Ral ei gh, state North Carolina




7. Description

Condition Cheek om Check one

—— excellent — deterlorated ____ unaltered XX _ original site

Xi good | ruins _ altered —__moved  date
___fair —_unexposed imimor)

Describe the present and original {if known) physical appearance

Located at the corner of McDowell and West Hargett Streets, The Professional Build-
ing has a unique and inportant relationship to Nash Square, historically one of the ngjor
features of the original plan of Raleigh's downtown area. It is an 8-story Chicago-style
office building, typical of the 1920's with its large rectangul ar massing and Beaux Arts

terracotta ornanentation in Neo-classical themes. |n this exanple, the architect nade
use of the traditional approach to classical colum arrangenents of *"base', "shaft" and
“capital™ in the organization of the fagade el ements. The approach makes use of four

vertical stages, with the base elenent divided into twa different stages. There are five
stores on the ground floor, in addition to the symmetrical entrance of f West Hargett
Street, and seven floors of offices above

The building is a steel frame commercial structure using fire-proof construction
techni ques, with a veneer of yellow vertical striated brick. The yellow background col or
serves to offset the white color of the terracotta decorative elenments. 1Its |ocation
on the corner creates a strong and inposing relationship with Nash Square across the street.
The inner block fagades(North and East el evations) are undecorated, and anticipated party
wal I's or future devel opnment to obscure them

Stage One: The first half of the base stage consists of terracotta groins and decor-
ations in Neo-classical themes with a terracotta cornice belt at the top of the first
story. The original design had full-story glass wi ndow inserts with hardwood mullions.
The north, or main, entrance consists of a one and one-half story classical broken pedi-
ment over a hemicircular arched window. The original detail of this w ndow consisted
of a terracotta belt, with hardwood nmullions echoing the curve of the arch, as shown in
the 1930 photograph. The side entrance is a later (probably 1960's) addition, with a
fanlight over double doors, in what was originally a standard storefront bay. The first
floor stage is the one which establishes the structural bay rhythmof the building, which
consi sts of seven bays on the West Hargett Street side, and six bays on the McDowell
Street side

The main feature of the first stage is the entry arch, which consists of square colum
pil asters, supporting a decorative panel on each side, which then support the classica
pediment form The hemicircular arch is 18 feet high at its keystone vertex. There are
decorative noldings at the base, at the spring, and under the pedinent, consisting of
dentils, and egg and dart noldings in highly decorative classical thenes. This feature
is the nost decorative part of the building, along with the roof-cornice and bal ustrade

Stage Two: This stage is the second part of the classical base of the building,
but is differentiated fromthe first stage by the establishment of the wi ndows set in
an alternating recessed brick coursing. This is the first appearance of the yellow brick
in the building, but the coursework is differentiated fromthe rest of the building by
the alternating recessed-projecting courses. At the top of the brick and the wi ndow franes
is aterracotta belt course, consisting of sinple undecorated noldings. The wi ndows are
one- dver-one light, steel franme windows, with two different widths being evident in the
upper stories. On both sides of the decorated front fagades of the building, the narrow
wi ndows are paired into the structural bays. The entrance arch in the first stage pene-
trates into the second stage, and the pedinment over the arch is conpletely located within
the brick spandrel area.
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Stage Three: This stage consists of five stories fromthe third to the seventh
floors, and is entirely yellow brick veneer in running bond with w de unraked joints.
The windows on the west and north elevations are the sanme as those in the second stage
and are set in the same structural bay pattern. Above the third floor, the windows have
a terracotta sill, and are topped by a flat arch, using a promnent terracotta keystone.
There is no expression of the floor or the ceiling |evel anywhere within the five story
third stage "shaft" element of the building. Between the corners of the building and
the first window and the first wi ndow and the second wi ndow on the seventh floor of the
building there are cut granite nedallions nounted flush to the fagade as decorative ele-
ments. Between the fifth and sixth floors in the central two bays of both the north and
west el evations, there is a projecting decorative wought iron bal cony, supported by
wrought iron brackets. This stage is capped by a narrow terracotta belt nol ding, which
consists of a flush fascia el enent capped by egg and dart strip nolding, termnating in
a standard rake nmol di ng.

Stage Four: This rather sinple stage consists of a return to the flush yellow brick
coursing at the sill level of the windows, with the sane wi ndow units as the renai nder
of the building, using the flat arch and prom nent keystone as before. The building is
capped by an el aborately decorated cornice, consisting of a rake nolding, dentils, egg
and dart, large modillion blocks, and a projecting raked nold. The whole cornice is then
capped by a balustrade approximtely three and one-half feet high. The balusters are
in the classical style, with yellow brick blanks, and the width of the balusters hel ps
to identify the rhythm of both the w ndow organization and the structural bays of the
building. This balustrade is capped with terracotta projecting nmolds. The fourth stage
consists of one full story, the eighth floor, and provides a fitting termnus for the
decorative theme of the "capital® of the building.

In the center of the building above the Hargett Street side, there is a flagpole
mount ed just behind the cornice top.

The south and west fagades of the building are sinple undecorated rough brickwork
with windows on the east side reflecting the sane structural bays as the McDowell Street
el evation. There is a short courtyard in the south elevation, which was so placed to
provide window light to all the interior offices of the building. There is a small one-
story side addition on the south side of the building, which was probably added in the
1940's, but which detracts fromthe overall character'and quality of The Professional
Fcilding. The south elevation also has wought iron fire escapes in the center of each
si de, which may have been a later (1930's) addition to the building to conformwith the
new y developed fire codes in the city of Raleigh. The structural bays are al so expressed
in, the south fagade wi ndow | ocations.

The east elevation is visible fromthe News and Cbserver parking |ot, but was not
intended to be a decorative or visible element of the building. Were the wi ndow modul es
are the same as for the west elevation, this fagade faces onto a public alley, and the
architect designed this fagade without decoration, expecting a building of simlar size
to be built on the property across the alley.




- = - —
o

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Inventor —Nomination Form

Continuation sheet ftem number 7 Page

The general location of The Professional Building two bl ocks west of the Fayetteville
Street Mall, the spine between the State Capitol Building and the new Convention Center,
figures promnently in the Raleigh city plan as a commercial el ement on Nash Square
Its relationghj p, therefore, to the urban design plan, and the growth of Raleigh, is also
an inportant ement of its individual design.

The interior of the building consisted originally of an entrance foyer which has
a highly-decorated steel stair bannister, which leads fromthe el evator bank in the nmddle
of the building to the front and then back up to the second floor. On the ground floor
were five stores or shops to be occupied by commercial enterprises requiring show oom
wi ndows. Above the ground floor were seven floors of 25 offices each, making a total
of 175 offices. The hallways of each of these floors were designed with translucent
glass so that the light fromthe offices on the perimeter of the building would penetrate
through to the hallway.

The exterior entrance to The Professional Building is characterized further by
two cast iron hexagonal carriage |anps nounted by sconces to the terracotta pilasters
Al t hough the interior of the building does offer some pleasing and interesting details,
the specul ative character of the building,cones clear with the lack of highly articul ated
details in the interior



8. Significance

Perlod Areas of Significance—Check md justify below

—. prehlistorlc — archeology-prehistoric _XX community planning —— landscape architecture ____ reiigion

—— 1400-1499 ___ archeoiogy-historic —__conservation | — — sclence

—— 1500-1599 __ agriculture —— - economics —literature sculpture

— 1600-1699 _EX_garchitecture — education — military social!

—_iT0-1T# a r t —— engineering —— music humanltarlan

—-1800-1899 XX commerce —. exploration/settiement ____ philosophy —— theater

X 1500~ communications —— industry —  politics/government transportation
—— Invention — other (specity)}

Specific date8 December, 1925 Bullder Architect J,E.Beaman Const./Milburn & Heister, Archs.

Statement of Significance (In one paragraph)

The Professional Building (1925) was designed by Yancey Milburn in 1924. Milburn was a
principal in the Washington, DC, office of Milburan, Heister & Co., whose Durham, NC,
branch office had the responsible charge to design this building. The eight-story
structure is significant as one of the early fireproof steel frame and concrete
skyscrapers in Raleigh and North Carolina, and is also significant as a symbol of the
transition of Raleigh from a small rural town of the early 1900's to state capitol and
business center of the 1920's. It is a fine example of the Chicago School influence on
American Architecture by the firms of Adler & Sullivan, and Burnmham and Root, and is

a rare exemplification and representation of North Carolina's emergence from Southern
rural-ness to the cosmopolitanism of larger, more industrialized neighbors to the north.
The Professional Building was commissioned by William Allen Erwin (1856-1932) of Durham,
a founder of the North Carolina Textile industry whose nine mills "helped to raise his
state to a leading position in the manufacture of textile products™. Mr. Erwin's legacy
of philanthropy in North Carolina is embodied in this building, where the proceeds were
diverted to a trust which provided in part for the upkeep, maintenance and annual budget
for the Chapel of the Cross in Chapel Hill, NC, which he built and donated to the
Episcopal Diocese. The office space was leased to physicians and dentists primarily, but
a number of major North Carolina corporations also leased space to carry out their
lobbying and marketing efforts within the state capitol arena. Amog these were the
Liggett & Myers Tobacco Co.,, the R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Co., and the Norfolk and Southern
Rail Road Co. The building has remained in the Erwin Trust until this year (1982), when
it was purchased by the present owners, Urban Structures, Inc. It has been continuously
occupied by the types of tenants sought by Mr. Erwin in 1925, and bears out his vision
that Raleigh would need a strong service industry to support the government functions as
they grew.It is also exemplary of the city's rapid urban development in the pre-depression
era, and remains intact as an important element of the architectural character of
downtown Raleigh as well as other cities in the Piedmont Crescent.

A. 1t is associated with Raleigh as a developing and growing city in the Piedmont
Crescent of North Carolina, one of the important links in the chain from Raleigh
to Gastonia.

B. It is associated with William Allen Erwin, a recognized leader and pioneer in the
South in the textile industry between 1880 and 1930, and with his wife, Sarah Smedes
Erwin, daughter of the founder of St. Mary's College in Raleigh. It is also closely
associated with the philanthropic efforts of this important North Carolina family.

C. " It is the work of architect Yancey Milburm of the famous Washington, DC, firm of
Milburn, Heister & Co., whose work all over the eastern seaboard includes the
Buncombe County Courthouse in Asheville, NC, Lansburgh's Department Store and
Addition i n Washington, DC, all potential historic landmarks. An early example
of a fireproof steel frame construction, the Professional Building has a Beaux Arts
pedestal and cornice which reflect a sigmificant quality of aesthetics and design
in a"modem" office building of the pre-depression era.
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The historical significance of The Professional Building is tied to three major con-
siderations, as follows: first, it was built by a leading figure in North Carolina' s tex-
tile manufacturing industry, a name well known in the state and the nation for his business
activities, WlliamAllen Erwin (1856-1932); second, it was designed by the well known
and highly respected architectural firm of Milburn Heister & Conpany, of Washington, D.C.
and Durham NGC, and was the work of Yancey Milburn (1892- 1980), son of Frank P. M11burn,
and responsi bl e designer for nost of the firms building designs in North Carolina from
1920 on; and third, the building is representative of the growh of Raleigh froma rural
town to promnence as a state capitol and business center of the south. To understand
the inportance of The Professional Building as an historic |andmark, an expl anation of
these three considerations is essential.

The early devel opment of the capitol city occurred within the original 400 acre grid
of the city designed in 1792 by WIlliam Christnas, where residences were built on one
acre lots, four to a block. By 1857, the grid was largely filled, and expansi on beyond
the original city linmts began.

From 1,000 acres in 1857 to 1907, a total of 50 years, the city's land area nore
than doubled to 2,400 acres. |In only the next 15 years, the land area doubled again to
over 4,500 acres, reflecting the trenendous popul ation and comercial growth of that 15-
year period. Between 1907 and 1929, five major buildings were built in Raleigh, all "sky-
scrapers™ and for simlar comercial uses.

This growth of commercial building activity was the beginning of the industrious
city of Raleigh we know today -- the state capitol and business center. The five build-
ings that were built were the follow ng:

The Masonic Lodge (1908, 7 stories)

Commercial National Bank (1911-1913, 10 stories)

Citizens National Bank (1914, 11 stories)

International Oder of Odd Fellows Building(1923-4, 10 stories)
The Professional Building (1925, 8 stories)

Concurrent with the construction of The Professional Building, was that of the Sir Wilter
Hotel, which was built in 1925 and was 10 stories tall. These buildings remined the
tallest and largest in the city from 1925 until 1945, and represented the biggest build-
ing boomthat Raleigh has ever known.

An article in the Raleigh News and Observer testifies to the strength of the 1910-
1930 buil ding boom(June 17, 1931 edition; page 11): "To illustrate the metanorphic growh,
the foll owi ng changes have been noted between 1910 and 1930:

1910 3
Apartment houses o 34
Aut o deal ers 1 15
Banks 8 11
Chur ches 43 &0

Druggi st's 15 8
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1910
Har ness nmakers 5
Har dwar e deal ers 3
Hot el s 4 11
Lawyers 46 147
Livery stables 11 0]
Physi ci ans 33 57

I ndeed, towns of North Carolina nmoved into the 20th century with a growth that was
to change the appearance of each fromsmall, sleepy southern villages to the busy places
we know today. According to the editors of Hills Raleigh Directory, "Raleigh awoke on
New Year's Day, 1925, to find itself no longer a town but a city ..."(Preface, 1926
edition).

The stage was thus set for entrepreneurs to capitalize on the devel opment opportuni-
ties offered by the move to the city. On January 1, 1925, the Ral eigh News and Cbserver
ushered in the New Year with an article headlined " Banner Building Year for Raleigh: Plans
for 1925 whi ch have al ready been announced include the erection of ... The Professiona
Buil ding at the corner of Hargett and McDowel| Streets, to cost $412,000...." The plans
for the building were designed and drawn during 1924 and the announcenent of its |ocation
was made by officials of the Wachovia Bank and Trust Conpany, trustees for the owners.

I n February, 1925, an article in the Raleigh Tines said, "Building in January over
$5 mllion" (February 2, edition, page 5), and went on to describe the nmonth's building
activities: "There were 43 new projects in the city, one of which is the new office build-
ing of Wachovia Bank and Trust Conpany on(the corner of) MDowel|l and Hargett Streets,
which will cost $335,000." Only one week before, the sane newspaper had heral ded: " RALEI GH
MAY HAVE FI FTH SKYSCRAPER I N NEAR FUTURE" :

" Ral ei gh now has three skyscrapers, and a fourth one which will be starting shortly
when actual building work is conmenced on The Professional Building, to be erected
by the Wachovia Bank and Trust on McDowel| and Hargett Streets. The site for

the building is nowin a state of excavation ..."

I n Septenber, 1925, Raleigh prided itself over the building boom and the News and
Observer again noted the statistics: "Recent building here $1.3 nillion: Included in the
big total are such large items as the Sir Walter Hotel, the State Theatre, and The Profes-
sional Building." At that tinme, The Professional Building was taking final shape, with
construction nmoving at a fast pace toward a Christmas, 1925, opening. Throughout Septenbe
the Bank offered office space for lease in the new Wachovia Bank and Trust Buil ding, and
by Novenber the building was al nost fully leased, with only suites 310 and 405-6 renain-
ing/ for rent (News and Observer, Novermber 8th edition, 1925).

Finally, on December 19, 1925, there was a full page ad in the News and Qbserver,
"Announcing the opening of Raleigh's newest and nost up-to-date office building, The
Prof essional Building, at the corner of MDowell and Hargett Streets.” Acconmpanying this
ad was a |arge photograph of the conpleted building as viewed fromthe site of the presen
muni ci pal buil ding diagonally across the street (page 3. In the sane edition, there
was an article describing the gala opening of The Professional Building:
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OFFI CE BUI LDI NG OPENED TO PUBLI C
" Many Attend Formal Opening of Professional Building Here"
"The formal opening of The Professional Building, Raleigh's newest office build-

ing was held last night, when hundreds inspected the splendid structure fromtop
to bottom

"The building which is at the corner of McDowell and Hargett Streets was made
possible for the professional nen of Raleigh through the aid of the Wachovia Bank
and Trust Conpany, trustee for the builders.. .. The architects were Milburn &

Hei ster Conpany (sic), of Washington, D.C. The contractors were J. E Beaman
Construction Conpany, of Raleigh ....n

The Raleigh Tinmes edition on the same date (Decenber 19, 1925 edition: page 17),
carried a conpanion article:

NEW PROFESSI ONAL BUI LDI NG ADDS TO RALEI GH' S BEAUTY

" Hundreds of Raleigh folk thronged to the new Professional Building Friday night
at its formal opening, and announced thenselves as well pleased with the many
convenient features of Raleigh's néwest office building...."

"Al of the offices in the building have wi ndows opening on the outside. QOne
of the features of the building is a circulating systemof ice water, the only
ot her such systemin the city being in the Sir Walter Hotel."” (The Professiona
Buil ding was one of the first in the state to have such a system)

Advertising in both issues of the newspapers attributed the credits for construction
as follows: roofing by Baker & Rawls, Roofers; steel work by Dietrich Brothers of Balti-
more; and elevators by A B. See Elevator Conmpany of Washington, D.C.

On January 1, 1926, with its usual New Year's ponp and circunstance, the News and
Observer announced that the building boom had continued unabated: " Raleigh Building Program
in 1925 cost $5 million, with buildings in the city totalling $3.5 nillion.

"Several large buildings in the business district have been erected during the
past year, and others conpleted. The Professional Building has been erected on
the corner of McDowell and Hargett Streets at a cost of around $450, 000."

Milburn, Heister & Conpany, Architects of Washington, DDC, were active in office
and conmercial design in the south Atlantic states, from New York to Atlanta. Their Durham
office was originally set up by Frank P. Milburn, and was operated by his son, Yancey
Milburn. The Durham office was responsible for over 50 najor commissions in North Carolina
al one, and over 250 buildings in the south during their operation. Frank Milburn died
in 1926 shortly after the conpletion of The Professional Building and was succeeded in
his practice by Yancey Milburn, who died in 1980 at the age of 88, according to a close
friend. (Interview with Finley T. Wiite, My 1982.)

The firmwas engaged in the practice of executing school, government and commerci al
bui I dings, and in addition to The Professional Building, also designed a dormitory at
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the North Carolina School for the Blind and Deaf, and the Capitol C ub Building(now de-

mol i shed) in Raleigh; 13 buildings at the University of North Carolina in Chapel Hill;

8 court houses in the Neo-classical revival style in North Carolina, including the Bunconbe
County Court House in Asheville; and Lansburgh's Departnent Store (1911) and addition
(1924), the Powhatan Hotel (1911), the Interstate Building (1912), and many others in
Washington, DC

Al t hough the Wachovia Bank and Trust Conpany was credited as the devel oper of The
Prof essional Building, the actual owners were Wlliam A len Erwin and Sarah Snedes Erw n
of Durham who had purchased the four separate |lots between 1923 and 1924 fromdifferent
owners. These transactions were recorded in the deed of trust executed by the Erwins,
whi ch made Wachovia Bank and Trust the trustee and the Erwin fam |y the beneficiaries
of the proceeds from the building.

In a unique act of philanthropy, the Erwin's deed of trust al so made the di ocese
of the Protestant Episcopal Church of North Carolina as beneficiary of the proceeds from
the trust:

"Ten percent (10% of the incone fromThe Professional Building is to pay to in-
sure the new Epi scopal Church known as the Chapel of the Cross in Chapel Hill,
Orange County. The remainder of the 10%w || be for keeping said church in good
repair."
Signed by: WlliamH Ruffin, Jr.
Not ary Public
(Deed Book 583; Folio 290; 1926)

Wlliam Allen Erwin was a |leader in the North Carolina textile industry, a real
estate devel oper in Raleigh, Durham Burlington, and Chapel HiIl, and a philanthropi st
whose generosity aided the Episcopal Church for nany years beyond his death. (Interview
with J. Harper Erwin, May, 1982. 1

M. Erwin's involvenent in the textile industry came about as a result of circunstance
as his first job after attendance at the University of Kentucky was with a general store.
Working as a bookkeeper, he was offered a positionwth the Holt MIls in what is now
Burlington, in 1882. His entry into the field of textiles and his rise to prom nence
in the 1920's closely parallels the rise of the North Carolina textile industry to a po-
sition of national and worldw de prom nence(see Young, page 61).

From 1880 to 1900, at least five newtextile mlls were built each year in North
Carolina heralding this tremendous growth of the textile industry.

. "By 1900, the North Carolina textile industry was losing its local character,
and was becoming a vital part of the national textile industry...." (Lefler and
Newsome, page 508-9).

This era, so inportant to the econony and history of the state, is also inportant
as a seed which germnated in the urbanization of the state during the first quarter of
the 20th century.
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I ndeed, Raleigh, the state's capitol, was a residential town conprising only four
square mles in 1907. From 1870 ta 1900, the nunber of towns with a population in excess
of 10,000 increased fromone to six, including Raleigh. The rural-urban shift between
1900 and 1925 is described in state denpgraphic statistics as well as the wealth of state
hi story documentation. |In 1900, the state was still a state of small farns with nore
than 90 percent of its population classified as rural. (Lefler & Newsome, page 512.)

Among others, the rise of the textile industry was a |eading cause of the rapid urbani-
zation of North Carolina during the first quarter of the 20th century. Manufacturers
brought |abor to towns, and the service industries began to grow in associationwith this
new trend. The total value of textile manufactures increased over fifteenfold from$30
mllion in 1900, to over $450 million by 1930, and the nunmber of mlls grewfrom177 in
1900 to 579 in 1927. (Lefler & Newsome, page 582.)

Simlarly, WlliamAllen Erwin rose to national promnence. 1In 1892 he joined with
B N Duke in Durham and the first Erwin nmill was started, to make cloth for tobacco
bags for the Duke (Bull Durhan) Tobacco enpire. In 1898, he pioneered the production
of blue denim and in 1903, riding the success of the first, a second nmll was opened.
In 1906, Erwin acquired the Cool eemee Cotton Mills,-and in 1910 a fourth mll was built
adjacent to the first one in West Durham | In 1926, the fifth Erwin mll was built in
Erwin, North Carolina, and in the nmeantime, M. Erwin had becone president of four other
mlls (3. R. Young, page 61).

Bet ween 1900 and 1930, M. and Ms. Erwin bought and sold over 45 properties in Wke
County. Indicative Of his rising success, the great ngjority of their transactions took
place during the 1920's. (Wike County Deed Books.) By 1925, he had amassed a personal
fortune, and had risen to the ranks of the mpbst influential and respected businessmen
in North Carolina. By the tine of his death in 1932, he was considered anong the nation's
| eaders in the textile business.

M. Erwin's obituary (News and Observer, February 29, 1932, page 1) at his death
listed his attributes as "textile nagnate, churchman and philanthropist, ... who at one
tine had the active managenent of nore spindles and | oons than any other in the Caroli-
nas...." He was president of the Durham Cotton Manufacturing Conpany, five plants of
the Erwvin MIls, the Pearl Cotton MIls in Durham Oxford Cotton MI1ls, Al pine Cotton
MIls in Mrganton, Locke Cotton MIIls of Concord, the Erwin Yarn Conpany of Phil adel phia,
and the Bank of Erwin? North Carolina.

He served as president of the Anerican Cotton Manufacturers Association in 1912-13,
and built three industrial communities, West Durham Erwi n, and Cool eenee, North Carolina,
all thriving towns today. In addition to The Professional Building, he built the Capitol
Apartments which were |ocated one block west on Hargett Street in Raleigh, St. Joseph's
Epkscopal Church in Durham the Goodhope Hospital in Erwin, the Chapel of the Cross in
Chapel Hill, and hundreds of residences for mll workers. (Interview with J. Harper Erwn,
May, 1982.) In Textile Leaders of the South, the following attributions were made: " North
Carolina and the textile industry are indebted to M. Erwin for his many business accomp-
lishments...."(He) continually promoted civic projects and was particularly interested
in church and- educational work. M. Erwin achieved a great deal for himself, his famly,
his state and the textile industry, and at his death in 1932 was regarded as one of the
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| eadi ng businessmen in the south.” This volune goes on to say that the Erwin nane is

one of the pioneer textile names in the cotton industry in North Carolina, and that M.
Erwin bore a major responsibility in the rapidly accelerated growth of the industry after
1880(J. R Young, page 472-3).

Occupants of The Professional Building then as now were the offices of physicians
and dentists, trade associations, corporation representatives and attorneys, according
to Hills Raleigh Directory of 1926. In 1981, the building was sold by the Erwin estate
heirs to Uban Structures, Inc. of Washington, DC, a firmwhich specializes in renova-
ting and refurbishing ol der buildings. Restoration of the building is underway at this
time(My-June 1982). The restoration and continued use of this is thus assured

As stated at the beginning of this historical sketch, the inportance of The Profes-
sional Building is its association with Raleigh and its downtown area as a devel oping
and growing city within the Piednont crescent of North Carolina. It is also inportant
historically for its association with M. Erwin, who was a recogni zed |eader and pi oneer
in the south, and with his wife, Sarah Snedes Erwin, the daughter of the founder of St.
Mary's College in Raleigh. Finally, it is inmportant historically as an exanple of the
work of the firmof Milburn, Heister & Conpany, and particularly the work of Yancey MI -
burn, the principal in the Durham North Carolina office of that famous firm It is an
outstandi ng exanple of the work in comercial buildings remaining fromthat practice
Finally, the inportance of The Professional Building historically stens fromits repre-
sentativeness as a significant design of a modern office building of the pre-depression
era in a nedium sized southern town.



9. Major Bibliographical References

Raleigh News and Observer, December 19, 1925. Pages 3 and 5
Raleigh News and Observer, February 29, 1932. Pages 1 and 2

James R. Young: Textile Leaders of the South. J. R. Young, pub., Anderson, SC, 1963

10. Geographical Data _
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UMT References

Al stz 2p0) Lsislent]7g s *Lal L Laed L

| 4
Zone Easting Northing Zome  Essting Maorthing

ela dblalagd balaly] ol W fy g Jbadslys]
el Tl b od Lot byl Flod Lhladag d balalaald
!‘.'i|_||ll||r|’1lti|||| "l_,l_,ll_.L__L_.‘I_L.LJLJ.I.IlIIl

Verbal boundary description and justification

City lot 133 (Old Shaffer Plan); SD Lots 1,2,3, & 4.
Southeast Corner, Intersection of McDowell and West Rargett 3s.; 95.00 feet east
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